
IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF ILLINOIS 

EASTERN DIVISION 
 
HORACE HOWARD    ) 
  Plaintiff   ) NO.  
      ) 
vs.      ) Judge  
      ) 
CHICAGO POLICE OFFICER  ) 
A. TORRES,     ) Magistrate  
  Defendant   ) JURY DEMAND  
       ) 
  

COMPLAINT AT LAW 
 

1. The jurisdiction of this Court is invoked pursuant to the Civil Rights Act, 42 U.S.C. 

Sections 1983 and 1988; 28 U.S.C. Sections 1331 and 1343 (a); and the Constitution of 

the United States, and supplemental jurisdiction under 28 U.S.C. Section 1367. 

2. Plaintiff Horace Howard is an African American male, a citizen of the United States, and 

a resident of Chicago, Illinois. 

3. Defendant Officer A. Torres is/was a police officer employed by the City of Chicago, and 

was at all times relevant to the facts alleged in this complaint, acting within the scope of 

his employment and under color of law.  On June 15, 2010, he was assigned to beat 2332 

from the 23rd District.  Defendant Officer Torres is being sued individually. 

4. On June 15, 2010 at about 2:30 p.m., Plaintiff stood among a group of bystanders as they 

watched a Chicago Police officer conduct an arrest near the intersection of West Barry 

Street and North Broadway Avenue in Chicago, Illinois. 

5. Plaintiff stood on the sidewalk across the street from where the arrest took place. 

6. As Plaintiff observed the arrest action, Defendant Officer Torres walked past him. 

7. Plaintiff made a comment about the arrest to one of the other bystanders. 
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8. The Defendant officer asked Plaintiff, “What did you say?” 

9. Defendant then grabbed Plaintiff by his shirt and pulled him from the sidewalk and into 

the street against a parked car. 

10. Defendant reached into and emptied Plaintiff’s pants pocket. 

11. Defendant kicked Plaintiff in the groin with his knee and foot, spreading Plaintiff’s legs. 

12. Defendant handcuffed Plaintiff with his hands behind his back. 

13. Defendant grabbed Plaintiff by his pants and jacket. 

14. Defendant threw Plaintiff into a Chicago Police wagon, face first. 

15. Plaintiff’s face hit the floor of the wagon. 

16. Plaintiff was taken in the wagon to Advocate Illinois Masonic Hospital (hereinafter 

“Masonic”). 

17. An unknown Chicago Police officer escorted Plaintiff into the emergency room at 

Masonic. 

18. An examination at Masonic revealed Plaintiff suffered two chipped teeth, lacerations and 

bruises on his lip and forehead, and a dislocated hip. 

19. Plaintiff received 13 stitches at Masonic. 

20. Plaintiff was released to the psychiatric ward at Jackson Park Hospital (hereinafter 

“Jackson Park”). 

21. Plaintiff was admitted to Jackson Park and kept there for two or three days. 

22. Plaintiff sought treatment for his injuries at Masonic roughly two weeks later. 

23. Plaintiff also sought treatment at Weiss Memorial Hospital in September 2010. 

24. Plaintiff sought treatment again at Mount Sinai Hospital in October 2010. 
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25. In December 2011, Plaintiff sought treatment for his injuries at the University of Chicago 

Medical Center. 

26. Plaintiff is currently scheduled to have surgery on his hip at the University of Chicago in 

April 2012. 

27. As a direct and proximate cause of the Defendant Officer’s conduct, as detailed above, 

the Plaintiff has suffered emotional disturbances, mental distress and ongoing physical 

injury. 

COUNT I 

(42 U.S.C. SECTION 1983 – EXCESSIVE FORCE CLAIM) 

(1-27)  Plaintiff Horace Howard alleges and re-alleges paragraphs 1 through 27 as fully 

set forth above. 

28. As a result of the unreasonable and unjustifiable attack on Plaintiff, he suffered both 

physical and emotional injuries. 

29. This unreasonable and unjustifiable beating of the Plaintiff by the Defendant Officer was 

a direct and proximate cause of her pain, suffering and mental anguish. The above acts by 

the Defendant Officer violated the Plaintiff’s Fourth Amendment right to be free from 

unreasonable seizures, in addition to a violation of 42 U.S.C. Section 1983. 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff Horace Howard demands compensatory damages in 

excess of $100,000 against Defendant Officer Torres and because the Defendant acted 

maliciously, willfully and/or wantonly, Plaintiff demands punitive damages from the 

Defendant Officer plus costs, attorneys’ fees, and such other additional relief as this 

Court deems equitable and just. 
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COUNT II 

(42 U.S.C. SECTION 1983 – FALSE ARREST) 

(1-27)  Plaintiff Horace Howard alleges and re-alleges paragraphs 1 through 27 as fully 

set forth above. 

28. The above acts of the Defendant Officer were willfully and wantonly done without 

probable cause and was a direct and proximate cause of Plaintiff’s pain, suffering and 

mental anguish, and therefore violated the Plaintiff’s Forth Amendment right to be free 

from unreasonable arrest, search and seizure. 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff demands compensatory damages in excess of $100,000  

against the Defendant Officer, and because the Defendant Officer acted maliciously, 

willfully and/or wantonly, Plaintiff demands punitive damages from each individual 

defendant, plus cost, attorney’s fees, and such other additional relief as this Court deems 

equitable and just. 

PLAINTIFF DEMANDS A JURY TRIAL ON ALL COUNTS 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
s/Damien Clark 
Damien Clark, 
Attorney at Law 
 

The Law Offices of Standish E. Willis, Ltd 
39 S. LaSalle, Ste 1210 
Chicago, IL  60603 
(312) 750 1950 
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